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RYLAND AT A GLANCE

With headquarters in Southern California, The Ryland Group is one of the nation’s largest
homebuilders and a leading mortgage-finance company. Founded in 1967, Ryland Homes has built
more than 190,000 homes during its 34-year history. Ryland Mortgage Company, founded in 1978, has

provided mortgage-financing and related services for more than 165,000 homebuyers.

RYLAND'S MISSION AND STRATEGIES
Ryland’s mission is to build homes of the highest quality and value, while providing the highest level
of satisfaction to its customers, employees and shareholders. The company has a cohesive and
successful strategy to accomplish this mission, which consists of:

2 Maximizing Ryland’s strengths and efficiencies as a high-production homebuilder.

& Achieving leadership in geographically diverse markets with high-quality, high-

value homes.
@ Capitalizing on Ryland’s national strength and local market expertise.
& Increasing shareholder value through the careful management of risks and return

on investment.

ON THE FRONT COVER

To reflect the ways Ryland has kept, and often set, the pace in the homebuilding industry, we

selected a dynamic image of Ryland homes from four markets for our front cover:

THE FOREST THE HAMPTON THE WESTHIGHLAND
TAMPA SAN DIEGO INDIANAPOLIS DENVER

In addition to offering an exciting visual of Ryland’s extensive product line, this changing image
also exemplifies Ryland’s ability to design homes that satisfy the varying needs and preferences
of homebuyers from market to market. This effort intensified in 1994 when Ryland put in place
a strategy focused on product, land and pecple. Since that time, we have introduced more than
2,000 home designs in communities across the country, secured strong land positions in 21 of the
best homebuilding markets, and invested successfully in building the best management team in
the industry. When all is said and done, these are the reasons that Ryland remains a leader in the

industry and in each of the markets we serve — and will for many years to come.
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THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES
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{amounts in thousands, except unit and share data) 2201 2000 1999
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

i

In 2001, the Ryland team again demonstrated its ability to raise the bar. We achieved
an increase in earnings for the sixth consecutive year, and we also set new records for

revenues, sales and closings.

This extraordinary financial performance did not happen by chance. It was not driven
by external forces. And it was not due to temporary, short-term factors. Rather, it was
the result of a proven, long-term strategy designed to generate sustainable growth
well into future. This strategy continues to guide Ryland today, and continues to be

executed with precision by the best management team in the industry.
The key components of this strategy include:

Maximizing Ryland’s strengths and efficiencies as a high-volume production

homebuilder:

. Achieving leadership in geographically diverse markets with a product line of
high-quality, high-value homes;

Capitalizing on Ryland’s national strength and local market expertise; and

~ Increasing shareholder value through the careful management of risks and return

on investment.

In 2001, the skillful execution of these strategic directives resulted in our increasing
consolidated net earnings by 61 percent to a record $132.1 million, or $9.26 per
diluted share. Our fourth-quarter consolidated net earnings also shattered the

previous record, increasing 42 percent to $44.9 million, or $3.22 per diluted share.

Given the ongoing upward trend in our financial results, we know that Ryland’s
strategy is working. In addition, because this strategy is designed to drive the
company’s internal growth, we are confident that this focused approach will continue
to deliver growth and improved performance well in the future, regardless of external

market issues.

RYLAND ACHIFVES RECORD HOMEBUITDING RESULTS

I am especially proud of the results achieved by our homebuilding operations, which

set new records in 2001.

During the year, favorable interest rates and the low inventory of new housing
certainly enhanced our performance. However, the lion’s share of our sales and profit
growth was directly attributable to our internal efforts to expand within our existing
markets. We did this by holding grand openings in 120 new communities, many of
which featured a variety of new home designs that we unveiled throughout the year.

That our homebuyers clearly recognized the value of our new designs and
community locations is evidenced by our sale of 13,095 homes in 2001 -a new record.
In addition, our shareholders benefited from the resulting profit boost to our bottom
line: Homebuilding pretax earnings amounted to $223.2 million, a 47 percent

increase from our record results of the prior year.




Homebuilding revenues also increased
significantly, growing 17 percent to
$2.7 billion and driven by a record
12,686 closings.

Further, our backlog at the end of
2001—4,577 homes sold but not yet
closed—was also a year-end high,
having grown by 10 percent from the
level at year-end 2000. Thus, we were
able to enter 2002 with one-third of our

anticipated closing volume for the year.

To put our performance in perspective,
it is important to note that we achieved
these dramatic increases without the
benefit of acquisitions or entries into
new markets. In addition, while the
average price of our homes increased
by a mere 3.4 percent over the past five
years, the percentage change in our
gross profit margins was nearly three

times as much.

RYLAND MORTGAGE FURTHER
ENHANCES OUR OPERATIONS

Adding to the company’s strength is the
support Ryland Mortgage Company
provides Ryland Homes and its
customers by serving as a critical link
in the homebuying process.

Ryland Mortgage also contributes to
shareholder value, and in 2001 did so
by amassing pretax earnings of $35.1

million—a gain of 205 percent from

2000. Its capture rate (the proportion of R. CHAD DREIER

CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ryland Homes customers obtaining

financing from Ryland Mortgage) also increased significantly—to 81 percent at
year-end 2001 from 71 percent at year-end 2000. We expect further gains in this
rate in 2002.

These results clearly validate our decision two years ago to reposition Ryland
Mortgage to focus exclusively on providing Ryland homebuyers with mortgage
financing and related services.




RYLAND'S FINANCIAL STRENGTH IS UNSURPASSED

In total, the performance of Ryland’s homebuilding and mortgage operations over the

past several years has been phenomenal.

We have seen continued improvement in our margins and our net income. As a result,
we have achieved five-year compounded annual growth rates of 53 percent for net
income and 6o percent for diluted earnings per share. These long-term trends give

us added confidence in our ability to grow well into the future.

In addition to our remarkable results, Ryland has also achieved a level of financial
strength that is unsurpassed. We have substantial internal financial resources,

ample access to capital at favorable terms, and a strong liquidity position.

We added to our financial strength in 2001 by paying off our short-term credit line
and refinancing two debt issues. As a result, our debt structure has a balanced
maturity schedule with a weighted average cost of debt at 8.9 percent. In addition,
our debt-to-capital ratio improved to 47 percent from 50 percent for 2000.

Our strong cash position, low debt and strategy of growing internally rather than
through acquisitions are the principal reasons we have been able to take advantage
of Ryland’s value in the equity markets through our share repurchase program, which
began in 1997. Since that time, we have repurchased 5.4 million shares at an average
cost of S24.27 a share. As of December 31, 2001, we had board authorization to

repurchase an additional 1.6 million shares.

Ryland is one of the few builders committed to the active repurchase of its shares.
I believe this says a lot about Ryland’s financial strength and our confidence
in Ryland as a value stock, which is poised for continued growth and therefore
optimally positioned to provide maximum value to our shareholders. We realize that

this is the basis on which our shareholders judge us.

That is why we will aggressively and continually seek opportunities to increase
profitability and sales, and to maximize our cash returns on the capital we employ.
In doing so, we will consider all aspects of our business— our strategic assets, the
challenges and opportunities that exist within our markets and within our industry,

and the overall economic environment.

It is important to note that we believe Ryland is well positioned for continued growth
regardless of outside pressures. We also believe that the economic and industry out-

look is favorable.

RYLAND IS POSITIONED FOR CONTINUED GROWTH

At the beginning of 2001, there was some concern within the market that
homebuilders would not be able to keep up the strong pace of the previous vyear.
However, we maintained then, as we do now, that there remains plenty of room for

growth in housing for several reasons.




First of all, the face of the housing industry has changed dramatically, and public
homebuilders’ share of the market is on a steady rise. Over the past 10 years, the
large-builder population has undergone a steady consolidation through a variety of
mergers and acquisitions. As a result, there are 50 percent fewer high-volume
builders operating in the market. At the same time, they have doubled their combined
market share and now collectively own nearly 20 percent of the market. We believe
this is a trend that will continue.

Second, large builders are in a better position to gain market share and increase
profits than smaller builders. They have better access to capital and more favorable
financing alternatives to sustain growth. They are better able to take advantage of
vast improvements in technology, and they are better able to attract higher-caliber
management to their organizations in order to more effectively manage their projects

and costs.

Third, the housing industry is far less cyclical and far more resilient today than in the
past. The lack of overbuilding in recent years has kept inventory at reasonable levels,
and the federal government’s effective management of interest rates has helped the
housing industry remain stable through a variety of economic conditions.

The fourth reason is specific to Ryland. Our unique business model is designed to
help us achieve significant revenue and profit growth in a controlled and relatively
low-risk manner, regardless of market conditions. In fact, Ryland is positioned to be
highly resistant to an economic downturn because of our geographic and product line
diversity, our favorable land position and our agile management team, which has the
expertise and the flexibility to react quickly and decisively to market opportunities
and changing market conditions. As aresult, the company is able to balance the risks
and maximize the rewards through a variety of market conditions.

As Ilook ahead, I am confident that Ryland has the strategies in place to achieve its
goals. We have proven ourselves time and again, and now have a solid track record of
outstanding results that can be directly linked to the effectiveness of our initiatives,
as well as the relentless pursuit of our objectives.

Where once Ryland was touted as a turnaround story, we are now known as a
model of success in the homebuilding industry. It is the dedicated, professional and
passionate people of Ryland who have helped bring the company to this level of
excellence, and I am proud that they are on the Ryland team. They are as determined
as ever to maximize opportunities in order to provide the best value to Ryland’s
employees, customers and shareholders.

R. CHAD DREIER

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Ryland’s Strategy:
Focused, Proven, Sustainable
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DURING 2001, RYLAND HELD
THE GRAND OPENING OF ITS
MACAULAY COMMUNITY IN

CHARLOTTE. THE COMMUNITY

FEATURES SEVERAL NEW
HOME DESIGNS, INCLUDING
THE MONTEREY MODEL, PRICED
FROM $217,990:




O IR S EArS MARKET LEADERSHIP AND FINANCIAL GROWTH
» Attaining a competitive advantage throughout our operations is at the heart of
AT S our strategy, because it keeps us focused on business practices that will yield the
highest level of return on our investment. In particular, we gain competitive
A T ” advantages from being a high-volume builder, which enables us to achieve a
leadership position in our markets through market share growth. Among the benefits
sl S "Lj [ that flow from our high-volume production and market leadership are access to the
‘ best land sites, access to higher-quality labor and materials at lower cost and

/ St ’, sl increased overhead leverage.

IR S ;,,-‘; T In line with our focus on high volume, we have determined that building an
PR Sy or s cSros, P
additional 1,000 homes per year is an optimum level of top-line growth for our

company. It enables us to meet our performance targets, and ensures that we

JOsa s VIS s,
will achieve a leadership position as one of the top 10 builders in any given market,
PN A A VR EA S G Building 1,000 additional homes is a reasonable objective, because it requires that we
sell only 50 additional homes in each of our markets annually. Over the past several
AT years, we have consistently met this level of volume growth. Moreover, it has enabled

us to establish ourselves as a leading builder in the vast majority of our markets. In
fact, in many parts of the country, we rank among the top five builders.

The combination of market leadership and high-volume production has
generated a number of cost efficiencies—the most noteworthy of which
is our ability to forge lucrative purchasing agreements with a variety of
suppliers whose products have high perceived value with our homebuyers.

Such agreements improve the quality of materials and products featured
in our homes and significantly reduce our building costs. In fact, our
national contracts currently cover 52 percent of our direct construction

costs, and yield rebates that average $1,150 per home.

Further, the high volume of homes that we build and sell in each of our
markets gives us access to the best subcontractors, who also are in
tune with our home designs, construction practices and scheduling
requirements. Such access has enabled us to reduce cycle times (the length

of time from sale to closing) and thereby realize additional cost reductions.

IV_AND'S TRANKLIN By passing along a portion of these cost savings to our buyers, we have been
VODEL IN THZ 3ALTIMGORE able to price our homes at extremely competitive levels and significantly increase
CCWMUNITY OF PATRIOCT'S their value in the marketplace. That is why we have been able to sell more homes and
GLEN 8 PR!CED FROWV realize higher return on inventory —both of which lead to additional top-line growth
$247,8¢8C, AN IXCIPTICNAL and increased profits.

VA_UZ IN THI!IS CGOLF
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BEST AVAILABLE CORY

BALANCED RISK THROUGH MARKET DIVERSITY

Another important part of our strategy is a concentration on achieving a high level of
geographic diversity. This is a clear point of differentiation between Ryland and other

builders, and it is one that we have worked very hard to establish.

We have done this by carefully evaluating which are the best homebuilding locations
based on a variety of economic indicators and marketing research. Included in the
data we veview as part of our strategic planning process are job growth, population
patterns, demographic trends and housing forecasts. In addition, we rely on the local
market expertise ot our high-caliber management team to ensure that our operations

are aligned with market opportunities.

Backed by our in-depth research and knowledge of locat markets and their current
and long-term prospects. we allocate our capital to key homebuilding markets in
proportion to our anticipated return on investment from them. Thus, we have been
able not only to achieve a high level of geographic diversity, but also to enhance the

quality of our assets and land positions.

Further, because we have allocated no more than 1o percent of our land to any one
of our homebuilding divisions. we have achieved a balanced level of investment
that insulates us from risk should a downturn occur in a given market. And should
housing activity shitt to other areas of the country. we are optimally positioned
ro v aflocare our capiral to stronger markets and emerging growth markets in

ThesO veas. -

'

viepys 1y domanant presence in the m;tjm"ity of our current markets and, even
Coraporvtent, are incvhe right markers for future growth. As a result, we can
cee e op expanding within our existing marker base, rather than having to

o beddit e associate lrisk of acquisitions to gain market share.

Foo b aad barssiaa s connibwting greatly to our ability to maximize

We now have o
dominant presence
in the majority

of our curvent
markets and,
EVEN MOTE
Smportant, are

in the right
markets for

future growth.




BEST AVAILABLE COPY

MEETING THE NEEDS OF A VARIETY OF HOMEBUYERS

Diver sihicarion oo abea appatent ot homebover probileswhich by designs i Tudie
G balanced e ob ety fevel and stoand second time move up buyers These

are important liotrebuy g segments to Rylond's Tature for thiee maim reasons

First. as o high volume production homebutlder, we have developed considerable
expertise i mecting the nveds of these value conscious consumers. Second.
demographic rrends indicare that these groups will continue 1o comprise the
majority ol homebuyers. And third, concentrating on such a diverse consume: mix
helps us berrer manage risk and achieve o sustainable level of growrh, since the

dirferent groups vary i their sensitivity ro difterent cconomic factors.

- In line with the purchasing
ability of our consumer base,
our homes range in price
from S75,000 to more than
S$500.000. Currently, the
average price of a Ryland

home is S208,000.

Record sales. and a variery of

local and narional awards,
demonstrate owr ability fo
meer our homebuyers' needs
and to build a higl level of
excellence into our product
offerings. We have been able
to do rhis by designing

our homes using a vaiely

of  marker escarch, and

by worlking with ourside
archirecrs 1o bomg o

Ficoes vo ket guickiy

fn addiorn vhe combination

of ce putciesing stiatesies
grab he wadue envineene
Toaltobep b Lot s B
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RYLAND 'S RESIDENCE 3

IN SOUTHERN CALIFCRNIA
I8 ONE OF MANY EXAMPLES
OF THE BEAUTIRULLY
DESIGNED HROMES
AVAILABLE IN THIS
DYNAMIC HOMEBUILDING
MARKET.

H
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STRENGTH, LOCAL FOEUS

THE RESIDENCE 4 (8 AN
OUTSTANDING VALUE 1IN
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.
WITH MOGRE THAN 3,400
SQUARE FEET OF LIVING
8PACE, IT 18 PRICED
FROM $279,990 IN THE
COMMUNITY OF RYLAND
RIDGE AT HIGHPOINT.

14



THE. RESIDENCE ‘418 AN
OUTSTANDING VALUE‘|N
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA.
WITH MORE THAN 3,400
SQUARE FEET OF LIVING
SPACE, IT IS PRICED
FROM $279,990 IN THE
C()MMUN.,IT:Y OF RYLAND

RIDGE AT HIGHPOINT.

teams. Each of these efforts is*

yoals well into the future.
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FROM $279,990 IN THE
COMMUDMNITY OF RYLAND
RIDGE AT HIGHPOINT.
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We prbvide training in a\'vari'et
mortgage financing, homebuﬂv
also have ama naffement recru1
candidates to Ryland, and an on}
that is helping us identify and:d
teams. Each of these efforts isin

roals well into the furure.
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BRAND EQUITY AND VALUE-ADDED SERVICE

Another way we are building for the future is by investing in the strength of
the Ryland brand. The ultimate goal is to create long-term relationships with our
customers that will generate increased sales, positive referrals and repeat
homebuyers for future business. We are building the Ryland brand in a variety
of ways—from executing an aggressive brand and retail advertising strategy, to
providing mortgage financing and related services, to offering customer service,

warranty and satisfaction programs.

During 2001, we upgraded the look of our brand by updating our logo, its
accompanying color palette and all of our marketing materials. Our new brand
identity system creates a memorable image by highlighting the Ryland name via a
strong, straightforward typeface that conveys the company’s stature and stability. In
addition, our new color group (used throughout this year’s annual report) is fresh
and bold, helping to make our name stand out from others in the industry.

This new brand presentation complements the upgrades we made to our sales
centers last year. It is helping us communicate a more personal and appealing image
to our customers, as well as increasing the number of qualified homebuyers who
visit our communities.

We are also attracting more customers to our communities by marketing our homes
via the Internet. Based on our research, we know that buyers who visit our website
and request more information about our homes and communities are seriously

considering the purchase of a new home in the near future.

Currently, half of our buyers visit ryland.com to gather information on our homes and
communities, and they rate our site as one of the industry’s best. At ryland.com,
homebuyers can personalize our home designs by selecting from available options.
They can create custom driving maps to our communities. They can learn more about
our company and read about our customer satisfaction initiatives. In addition, they
can utilize our mortgage calculator to determine how much home they can afford
based on a variety of loan programs. Once they make the decision to purchase a
Ryland home, they can track the status of their Ryland mortgage application on-line,
and access warranty and home maintenance information specific to the home they

have chosen.

Providing these kinds of tools makes it easier to find and purchase a new home, and
that gives us an important competitive advantage. For the same reason, we offer a
number of other services —mortgage financing in particular —that help simplify the
process of shopping for and buying a home.

During 2001, an increasing number of Ryland homebuyers (81 percent compared
71 percent in 2000) selected Ryland Mortgage to finance their home purchase and to
provide other value-added services such as title search, settlement and escrow
services and homeowners insurance.

THE HANOVER (PRICED
FROM $215,980) 1S
RYLAND'S BEST-SELLING
HOME IN THE CHICAGO
COMMUNITY OF AMBER
FIELDS.

17




THE BORDEAUX, A SINGLE-
STORY HOME IN HOUSTON'S

STONE FOREST COMMUNITY,

MAXIMIZES SPACE FOR
THE DOLLAR—FEATURING
MORE THAN 2,300 SQUARE
FEET AT A BASE PRICE OF
$176,990.

7

Our goax, of course, is to provide financing and other services for an even
greater percentage of Ryland homebuyers. We are @@@@mg@iﬁghﬁmg this by
improving the efficiency and reliability of our mortgage-loan process and
services, and by having our mor g ge company focus solely on providing

financing and related services for Ryland homebuyers. This focus has

©

resulted in a number of improverments te our organization.

For example, homebuyers are now able to apply for a loan via our website
ot IR Ryland sales centers at the time they sign the sales contract. As a
result of these and other enhancements (o our mortgage operations,

homebuyers who use Rylamd Mortgage are significantly more satisfied
with the %mewmn’mg process tham are customers whe use altermative
.

mortgage companies.

Another way we provide value and make the homebuying process more

convenient is by offering imterior design support. Ryland home decor

centers enable customers to view opticns, upgrades and coler selections (n
one convenlent location, With the asslistance of @ professional design consultant,
Ryland [Fn@mcébw@ﬁgs select from a variety of cholces for cabinetry, plumbing fxtures,
windews, lighting, flooring, appliances, fireplaces and other options based on their

individual by C]gg@us* 1nd tastes.

After our buyers move into thelr new Ryland home, we ask them to rate thelr
satlsfaction with the home and with our services. Then we repeat the survey one

year later. As a result, we are able te pinpoint Improvement opportunities in several
performance areas, including quality of werkmanship, construction and customer

service; home designs and professionalism and helpfulness of the sales and mortgage

signs
staffs. This comprehensive customer satisfaction program, administered by
1.0, Power and Associates, shows that the majority of Ryland’s homeowners rate thefr
overall experiences positively, and our customer satistaction ratings are continuing
to rise. In additlon, we have been recognized in [.0. Power and Assochates surveys
and programs fer homebullding excellence in our Charlotte, Denver, Orlando and

Indiamapolis markets.

All of our marketing efforts work together te strengthen Ryland as a brand, and
are part of our overall strategy to maintain Rylarnd's position of leadership in the
homebullding Industry. Moreover, the initiatives that make up our entire strategic
approach are designed to position Ryland for future growth, regardless of external
market conditions.

Therefore, we will continue to base our decisions on this successful strategy. In
this way, we will be able to deliver Increased value to our shareholders now and [n
ithe future.




THE CABERNET Il (PRICED
FROM $321,990) IS A
DRAMATIC HOME IN
DENVER'S ANTELOPE
HILLS COMMUNITY, WHICH
FEATURES ONE-ACRE
HOMESITES SURROUNDING
A CHAMPIONSHIP-LEVEL
GOLF COURSE.




THE RICHMOND MODBEL
I8 PRICED FROM $219,080
IN ORLANDO'S PARKSIDE
LANDING COMMUNITY.




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

{amounts in millions, except share data) unaudited 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
ANNUAL RESULTS
REVENUES
Homebuilding $2,684 $2,286 $1,959 $1,695 $1,557
Financial services 58 46 50 70 93
TOTAL 2,742 2,332 2,009 1,765 1,650
Cost of sales — homebuilding 2,182 1,901 1,633 1,429 1,346
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3N 268 239 216 21
Interest expense 24 28 28 45 57
Earnings before taxes 225 135 109 75 36
Tax expense 89 53 42 32 14
Net earnings before extraordinary item 136 82 67 43 22
Extraordinary item, extinguishment of debt’ (4) — — {3) —
Net earnings $ 132 $ 82 $ 67 $ 40 $ 22
YEAR-END POSITION
ASSETS
Housing inventories $ 899 $ 888 $ 823 $ 642 $ 555
Cash and cash equivalents 298 142 70 50 36
Mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable 62 85 99 112 153
Other assets 252 246 256 411 539
TOTAL ASSETS $1,511 $1,361 $1,248 $1,215 $1,283
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt $ 491 $ 450 $ 378 $ 308 $ 310
Short-term notes payable 62 83 157 223 31
Other liabilities 395 375 327 338 327
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 948 $ 908 $ 862 $ 869 $ 978
Stockholders’ equity $ 563 $ 453 $ 386 346 $ 305
PER COMMON SHARE DATA
BASIC
Net earnings before extraordinary item $10.21 $ 6.19 $ 4.49 $ 2.90 $ 1.33
Net earnings $ 9.88 $ 6.19 $ 4.49 $ 2.67 $ 1.33
DILUTED
Net earnings before extraordinary item $ 9.57 $ 5.92 $ 4.30 $ 2.79 $ 1.32
Net earnings $ 9.26 $ 5.92 $ 4.30 $ 258 $ 1.32
Dividends declared $ 0.16 $ 0.16 $ 0.16 $ 0.16 $ 0.27
Stockholders’ equity $42.59 $33.49 $27.22 $22.83 $20.31

1 The Company reported extraordinary after-tax charges of $4.4 million in 2001 and $3.3 million in 1998 which were related to losses on the early

extinguishment of debt.
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THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

THE COMPANY

Operations of The Ryland Group and its subsidiaries {“the
Company”) consist of two business segments: homebuilding
and financial services. The Company’s homebuilding segment
specializes in the sale and construction of single-family
attached and detached housing in 21 markets. The financial
services segment is primarily involved in providing mortgage-
related products and services for the Company’s homebuilding
customers.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company achieved record earnings for the third consecu-
tive year in 2001. New orders and deliveries of homes
also reached their highest levels during the same three-year
period. The Company reported consolidated net earnings
before extraordinary item of $136.5 million, or $10.21 per share
{S$9.57 per diluted share), for 2001, compared to $82.3 million,
or $6.19 per share ($5.92 per diluted share), for 2000 and
$66.7 million, or $4.49 per share ($4.30 per diluted share), for
1999. This represents increases in net earnings before extra-
ordinary item of 66 percent and 23 percent for 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization (EBITDA) rose to $318.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001, from $219.3 million for the same
period in 2000. EBITDA was $184.5 million for the year ended

December 31,1999,

The Company’s revenues reached a historical high in 2001
at $2.7 billion, up 17 percent from $2.3 billion in 2000. Total
revenues of $2.3 billion in 2000 exceeded 1999 levels by $o0.3
billion, or 16 percent. Both housing and mortgage banking rev-
enues rose in 2001.

The homebuilding segment reported pretax earnings of
$223.2 million for 2001, compared to $151.3 million for
2000 and $120.8 million for 1999. Homebuilding results in
2001 increased from 2000 primarily due to higher average
closing prices, gross profit margins and closing volume.
Homebuilding results in 2000 increased from 1999 primarily
due to these same factors.

The financial services segment reported pretax earnings of
$35.1 million for 2001, compared to $11.5 million for 2000
and $11.8 million for 1999. The increase in 2001 from 2000 was
primarily attributable to gains realized from the growth of
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operations, resulting in heightened volume and gains from
sales of mortgages and related servicing rights; earnings from
title and escrow operations; and decreases in both general and
administrative and interest expenses. The decrease in 2000
from 1999 was due to decreased revenues from investment
operations and increased general and administrative expens-
es, partially offset by increased gains realized from sales of
mortgages and related servicing rights, as well as from

increased earnings from title and escrow operations.

Corporate expenses represent the costs of corporate functions
that support the business segments. Corporate expenses were
$32.7 million for 2001, $28 million for 2000 and $23.3 million
for 1999. Corporate expenses for 2001 and 2000 increased
from prior year levels primarily as a result of increases in
incentive compensation which were due to higher earnings

levels.

During 2001, the Company continued to strengthen its
balance sheet. Liquidity increased with cash and unused bor-
rowing capacity totaling $617.7 million at December 31, 2001,
versus $485.9 million in 2000, while reliance on short-term
debt decreased. Debt-to-total capitalization was down to 47
percent at December 31, 2001, compared to 50 percent at
December 31, 2000. In addition, the Company’s ratio of
EBITDA to interest incurred improved to 5.8 for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to 3.5 for the same period in
2000. The Company, which is geographically diverse, has a
three-year supply of land and turned inventory over a compet-

itive 2.3 times in 2001.

HOMEBUILDING SEGMENT
Results of operations for the homebuilding segment are sum-
marized as follows (amounts in thousands, except average

closing price):

2001 2000 1999

Revenues $2,684,116  $2,285,540  $1,958,832
Gross profit 502,497 384,889 325,738
Selling, general and

administrative

expenses 261,078 216,660 193,193
Interest expense 18,229 16,886 11,715
Homebuilding

pretax earnings § 223,190 $ 151,343 $ 120,830
Average closing price $ 208,000 $ 194,000 $ 190,000
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Homebuilding revenues increased 17 percent in 2001, com-
pared to 2000, due to an 11 percent increase in closings and a
7 percent increase in the average closing price. The increase in
closings in 2001 was due to a higher backlog at the beginning
of the year and a 10 percent increase in new home orders dur-
ing the year. Homebuilding revenues increased 17 percent in
2000, compared to 1999, due to a 12 percent increase in clos-
ings and a 2 percent increase in the average closing price. The
Increase in closings in 2000 was due to a higher backlog at the
beginning of the year and a 15 percent increase in new home
orders during the year.

Consistent with its policy of managing land investments
according to return and risk targets, the Company executed
several land sales during the year. Homebuilding results
included a pretax gain of $2.3 million from land sales in 2001,
compared to a pretax loss of $o.g million in 2000 and a pretax
gain of $0.7 million in 1999.

Gross profit margins from home sales averaged 19.0 percent
for 2001, an increase from 17.4 percent for 2000 and 16.8 per-
cent for 1999. The improvement was primarily due to Company
initiatives designed to reduce direct construction costs, esca-
lating sales prices and increased closings from newer commu-
nities that had more profitable land positions and a more cost-
effective product.

Selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage
of revenues, were 9.7 percent for 2001, 9.5 percent for 2000
and 9.9 percent for 1999. The increase from 2000 to 2001 was

primarily due to higher incentive compensation expense,
which resulted from improved earnings, and an increase in
rent expense as a result of a rise in model home lease activity,
offset by divisional and regional cost savings.

Interest expense increased $1.3 million, or 8 percent, in 2001,
compared to 2000. This was primarily due to the issuance of
new senior debt prior to redemptions of pre-existing debt and
was partially offset by declining interest rates, reduced bor-
rowings against the revolving credit facility and interest
earned on increased cash investments. Interest expense
increased $5.2 million, or 44 percent, in 2000, compared to
1999, primarily due to a higher long-term debt balance,
which resulted from increased activity in the Company’s
homebuilding operations, and higher interest rates.

HOMEBUILDING OPERATIONAL DATA

New orders increased 10 percent in 2001, compared to 2000.
The Company believes new order trends were driven by a desir-
able product mix, superior locations and a proactive approach
to maintaining an adequate supply of competitively priced
lots. At December 31, 2001, the Company had outstanding
contracts for 4,577 units, up 10 percent from year-end 2000,
due to an increase in new orders during the year. Qutstanding
contracts represent the Company’s backlog of sold but not
closed homes, which are generally built and closed, subject to
cancellation, over the subsequent two quarters. The $917 mil-
lion value of outstanding contracts increased 6 percent from

year-end 2000.

NEW ORDERS (UNITS) CLOSINGS (UNITS)
% %
2001 2000 CHANGE 2001 2000 CHANGE
North 3,875 3,511 10 3,718 3,242 15
South 6,798 6,018 13 6,356 5,988 6
West 2,422 2,390 1 2,612 2,188 19
Total 13,095 11,919 10 12,686 11,418 1
OUTSTANDING OUTSTANDING
CONTRACTS CONTRACTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001 DECEMBER 31, 2000
DOLLARS DOLLARS
% IN AVERAGE IN AVERAGE
UNITS CHANGE MILLIONS PRICE UNITS  MILLIONS PRICE
North 1,637 1 $368 $225,000 1,480 $305 $206,000
South 2,540 21 450 177,000 2,098 383 182,000
West 400 (32) 99 247,000 590 179 304,000
Total 4,577 10 $917 $200,000 4,168 $867 $208,000
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FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT
Revenues and expenses of the Company’s financial services
segment are summarized as follows {amounts in thousands):

2001 2000 1998
REVENUES
Net gains on sales of
mortgages and
mortgage servicing
rights $35,768 $20,283 $17,598
Title/escrow/insurance 11,957 9,823 9,036
Interest
Mortgage-backed
securities and
notes receivable 8,584 11,969 16,624
Other 1,165 3,647 5,695
Total interest 9,749 15,616 22,219
Other 194 383 1,581
Total revenues $57,668 $46,105 $50,434
EXPENSES
General and
administrative $17,125 $22,991 $21,944
Interest 5,423 11,619 16,652
Total expenses $22,548 $34,610 $38,596
Pretax earnings $35,120 $11,495 $11,838
FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATIONAL DATA
2001 2000 1899
RETAIL OPERATIONS
Number of mortgage
originations 9,743 7,500 7,108
Dollars (in millions) $1,700 $1,200 $1,100

Percent of Ryland Homes
originations 81% 71% 68%
INVESTMENT OPERATIONS

Mortgage-backed
securities and
notes receivable
average balance
(in millions) $ 7 $ 93 $ 98
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In 2001, revenues for the financial services segment increased
from 2000 levels due to a 44 percent rise in loan sales volume
and higher earnings from title and escrow operations. General
and administrative expenses decreased for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to 2000, primarily as a result
of provisions made in the prior year for contingent claims
relating to loan servicing activities (see Note L}, partially
offset by increased incentive compensation commensurate
with improved earnings. In 2000, revenues for the financial
services segment decreased from 1999 levels due to declining
mortgage collateral and investment balances, partially offset
by an increase in originations and higher revenues from title
and escrow operations. General and administrative expenses
increased for the year ended December 31, 2000, compared to
1999, primarily as a result of provisions for contingent claims
relating to loan servicing activities in prior years.

Interest expense decreased 53 percent for the year ended
December 131, 2001, compared to 2000, primarily due to
reduced average warehouse borrowings; the termination of the
warehouse facility agreement in July 2001; and a decline in
average borrowing rates, bonds payable and short-term notes
payable. Interest expense decreased 30 percent for the year
ended December 31, 2000, compared to 1999, primarily due to
adecrease in the warehouse holding period for mortgage loans
before they were sold in the secondary market, as well as
declining mortgage collateral and investment balances.

Retail operations include residential mortgage origination,
title, escrow and homeowners insurance brokerage services.
Retail operations reported pretax earnings of $33.1 million for
2001, compared to $g9.7 million for 2000 and $9.2 million for

1999.

The number of mortgage originations rose by 30 percent in
2001, primarily due to an increase in the capture rate of
Company homebuilder originations to 81 percent in 2001 from
71 percent in 2000. Mortgage originations rose by 6 percent in
2000, primarily due to an increase in the capture rate of
Company homebuilder originations to 71 percent in 2000 from

68 percent in 1999.

Pretax earnings from investment operations were $2 million

for 2001, compared to $1.8 million for 2000 and $2.7 million
for 1999.




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Cash requirements for the Company’s homebuilding and
financial services segments are generally provided from out-
side borrowings and internally generated funds. The Company
believes that its current sources of cash are sufficient to meet

its requirements.

The homebuilding segment’s borrowings include senior notes,
senior subordinated notes, an unsecured revolving credit facil-
ity and nonrecourse secured notes payable. Senior and senior
subordinated notes outstanding totaled $490.5 million and

$450 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit facility to
finance increases in its homebuilding inventory and working
capital. This facility will mature in October 2003 and provides
for borrowings up to $400 million. There were no outstanding
borrowings under this facility at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
The Company had letters of credit outstanding under this
facility which totaled $83.5 million at December 31, 2001, and
$55.7 million at December 31, 2000. To finance land purchases,
the Company may also use seller-financed nonrecourse
secured notes payable. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, out-
standing seller-financed nonrecourse secured notes payable
were $3.3 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

Housing inventories increased to $899.4 million at December
3i, 2001, from $888.4 million at December 31, 2000. The
increase in inventory was funded with internally generated

funds.

The financial services segment uses cash generated from
operations and borrowing arrangements to finance its opera-
tions. In July 2001, the financial services segment terminated
its credit facility, which provided up to $150 million for mort-
gage warehouse funding. As a result of its ability to accelerate
loan sales, the Company no longer had a need for this facility.
Other borrowing arrangements at December 31, 2001, included
a repurchase agreement facility providing for borrowings of
up to $80 million and a $45 million revolving credit facility
used to finance investment portfolio securities. At December
31, 2001 and 2000, the combined borrowings of the financial
services segment, outstanding under all agreements, were
$62.1 million and $82.6 million, respectively.

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company’s limited-purpose subsidiaries no longer issue
mortgage-backed securities and mortgage-participation secu-
rities, but they continue to hold collateral for previously issued
mortgage-backed bonds in which the Company maintains a
residual interest. Revenues, expenses and portfolio balances
continue to decline as mortgage collateral pledged to secure
the bonds decreases due to scheduled payments, prepayments
and exercises of early redemption provisions. The source of
cash for the bond payments was cash received from the mort-
gage loans, notes receivable and mortgage-backed securities.

The Ryland Group has not guaranteed the debt of either
the financial services segment or the limited-purpose
subsidiaries.

During 2001, the Company repurchased approximately one
million shares of its outstanding common stock at a cost of
nearly $45.5 million. At December 31, 2001, the Company had
Board authorization to repurchase up to an additional 1.6 mil-
lion shares of its outstanding common stock. The Company’s
stock repurchase program has been funded primarily with
internally generated funds.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

USE OF ESTIMATES

In budgeting land acquisitions, development and homebuild-
ing construction costs, the Company evaluates market
conditions, material and labor costs, buyer preferences, con-
struction timing and warranty obligations. Estimates are
reviewed continually and updated when mnecessary.
Management believes that the timing and scope of its evalua-
tion procedures are proper and adequate. However, changes of
assumptions relating to such factors could have a material
effect on gross margins, net profit and inventory valuation for
the Company.

ASSET VALUATIONS

The Company reviews long-lived assets and assets held-for-
sale to determine that their carrying values have not been
impaired. Cash flow forecasts and sales of comparable assets
are used as primary methods to evaluate recoverability.
Management believes its processes are designed to properly
assess market values and carrying values of assets.

See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Note A).
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MARKET RISK SUMMARY

The following table provides information about the Company’s significant financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in

interest rates. For debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by expect-

ed maturity dates. Weighted-average variable rates are based on implied forward rates as of the reporting date.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT BY EXPECTED MATURITY

FAIR
VALUE
{dollars in thousands) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 THEREAFTER TOTAL 12/31/01
HOMEBUILDING
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt (fixed rate) $100,000 $390,500  $490,500 $514,519
Average interest rate 8.0% 9.1% 8.9%
FINANCIAL SERVICES
ASSETS
Mortgage loans, held-for-sale?
(fixed rate) $12,027 $ 12,027 $ 12,287
Average interest rate 7.0% 7.0%
Mortgage loans, held-for-sale?
(variable rate) $ 1.21m $ 1211 $ 1,237
Average interest rate 6.7% 6.7%
Mortgage-backed securities
and notes receivable $12,598 $9,948 $7,867 $6,224 $ 4925 $ 18,863 §$ 60,415 $ 64,038
Average interest rate 9.3% 9.3% 9.3% 9.3% 9.3% 9.2% 9.3%
LIABILITIES
Short-term notes payable
(variable rate) $62,119 $ 62,119 $ 62,119
Average interest rate Various' Various'
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Forward-delivery contracts:
Notional amount $35,000 $ 35,000 $ (290)
Average interest rate 6.2% 6.2%
Interest rate lock
commitments:
Notional amount $47,820 $ 47,820 $ 230
Average interest rate 7.1% 7.1%

1 Variable interest rate available to the Company is based upon LIBOR, federal funds or prime rate plus the specified margin over LIBOR, federal funds or prime

rate.

2 Mortgage loans held-for-sale are reported in the balance sheet in Financial Services “Other Assets.”
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Interest rate risk is the primary market risk facing the
Company. Interest rate risk not only arises principally in the
Company’s financial services segment, but also in respect to
the homebuilding segment’s revolving bank facility. The
Company enters into forward-delivery contracts and may, at
times, use other hedging contracts to mitigate its exposure to
movements in interest rates on interest rate lock commit-
ments (IRLCs) and mortgage loans held-for-sale. The selection
of hedging contracts is based upon the Company’s risk-man-
agement policy that establishes a risk-tolerance level. The
major factors influencing the use of hedging (derivative) con-
tracts include general market conditions, interest rates, types
of mortgages originated and the percentage of IRLCs expected
to be funded. In managing interest rate risk, the Company does

not speculate on the direction of interest rates.

NOTE: Certain statements in this annual report may be regard-
ed as “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements are based on various factors and assumptions that
include such risks and uncertainties as the completion and
profitability of sales reported; the market for homes generally
and in areas where the Company operates; the availability and
cost of land; changes in economic conditions and interest
rates; availability and increases in raw material and labor
costs; consumer confidence; government regulations; and
general economic, business and competitive factors, all or
each of which may cause actual results to differ materially.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{amounts in thousands, except share data) 2001 2000 1999
REVENUES
HOMEBUILDING $2,684,116 $2,285,540 $1,958,832
FINANCIAL SERVICES 57,668 46,105 50,434
TOTAL REVENUES 2,741,784 2,331,645 2,009,266
EXPENSES
HOMEBUILDING
Cost of sales 2,181,619 1,900,651 1,633,094
Selling, general and administrative 261,078 216,660 193,193
Interest 18,229 16,886 11,715
Total homebuilding expenses 2,460,926 2,134,197 1,838,002
FINANCIAL SERVICES
General and administrative 17,125 22,991 21,944
Interest 5,423 11,619 16,652
Total financial services expenses 22,548 34,610 38,596
CORPORATE 32,730 27,998 23,332
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,516,204 2,196,805 1,899,930
Earnings before taxes and extraordinary item 225,580 134,840 109,336
Tax expense 89,104 52,688 42,641
NET EARNINGS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 136,476 82,252 66,695
Extraordinary item — loss on early extinguishment of debt
(net of taxes of $2,861) (4,383) — —
NET EARNINGS $ 132,093 $ 82,252 $ 66,695
Preferred dividends $ 308 $ 694 $ 831
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 131,785 $ 81,658 $ 65,864
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
BASIC
Net earnings before extraordinary item $ 101 $ 6.19 $ 4.49
Extraordinary item {0.33) — —
Net earnings per common share $ 9.88 $ 6.19 $ 4.49
DILUTED
Net earnings before extraordinary item $ 8.57 $ 5.92 $ 4.30
Extraordinary item (0.31) — —
Net earnings per common share $ 9.26 $ 5.92 $ 4.30
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 13,332,725 13,172,793 14,678,925
Diluted 14,255,679 13,893,362 15,505,382

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

{amounts in thousands, except share data) 2001 2000
ASSETS
HOMEBUILDING
Cash and cash equivalents $ 295,015 $ 135,371
Housing inventories:
Homes under construction 460,152 451,723
Land under development and improved lots 439,237 436,682
Total inventories 899,389 888,405
Property, plant and equipment 33,371 35,577
Purchase price in excess of net assets acquired 18,185 19,947
Other assets 79,638 71,932
1,325,598 1,151,232
FINANCIAL SERVICES
Cash and cash equivalents 3,295 6,830
Mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable 62,045 84,600
Other assets 27,507 23,060
92,847 114,490
OTHER ASSETS
Net deferred taxes 36,739 34,858
Other 55,685 60,761
TOTAL ASSETS $1,5610,869 $1,361,341
LIABILITIES
HOMEBUILDING
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 260,908 $ 254,949
Long-term debt 480,500 450,000
751,408 704,949
FINANCIAL SERVICES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 23,586 22,600
Short-term notes payable 62,119 82,563
85,705 105,163
OTHER LIABILITIES 110,894 97,600
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 948,007 $ 907,712
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Convertible preferred stock, $1 par value:
Authorized — 1,400,000 shares
Issued — O shares (295,018 for 2000) $ - $ 295
Common stock, $1 par value:
Authorized — 78,600,000 shares
Issued — 13,216,864 shares (13,248,948 for 2000) 13,217 13,249
Paid-in capital 39,514 60,535
Retained earnings 508,667 379,006
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,464 544
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’" EQUITY $ 562,862 $ 453,629
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS" $1,510,869 $1,361,341

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY
ACCUMULATED
OTHER TOTAL
PREFERRED COMMON PAID-IN RETAINED ~ COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS'
(amounts in thousands, except share data) STOCK STOCK CAPITAL EARNINGS INCOME EQUITY
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 1999 $417 $14,752 $93,193 $236,011 $1,910 $346,283
Comprehensive income
Net earnings 66,695 66,695
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on mortgage-backed
securities, net of taxes of $(543) (851) (851)
Total comprehensive income 65,844
Preferred stock dividends (per share $2.21) (831) (831)
Common stock dividends (per share $0.16) (2,328) (2,328)
Repurchase of common stock (1,188} {25,938) (27,126)
Conversions and retirements of preferred stock (67) 63 (896) (900)
Reclassification of preferred paid-in capital 612 612
Employee stock plans (223,800 shares) 224 4,759 4,983
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1999 350 13,851 71,730 299,547 1,059 386,537
Comprehensive income
Net earnings 82,252 82,252
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized losses on mortgage-backed
securities, net of taxes of $(329) (515) (515)
Total comprehensive income 81,737
Preferred stock dividends (per share $2.21) (694) (694)
Common stock dividends (per share $0.16) (2,099) (2,099)
Repurchase of common stock (1,147) (24,262) (25,409)
Conversions and retirements of preferred stock (55) 54 (685) (586)
Reclassification of preferred paid-in capital 3,179 3,179
Employee stock plans (491,051 shares) 491 10,473 10,964
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 295 13,249 60,535 379,006 544 453,629
Comprehensive income
Net earnings 132,093 132,093
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gains on mortgage-backed
securities, net of taxes of $601 920 920
Total comprehensive income 133,013
Preferred stock dividends (per share $1.11) (308) (308)
Common stock dividends (per share $0.16) (2,124) (2,124)
Repurchase of common stock {(1.002) {44,491) (45,493)
Conversions and retirements of preferred stock (295) 295 149 149
Reclassification of preferred paid-in capital 1,309 1,309
Employee stock plans (674,853 shares) 675 22,012 22,687
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 $ — $13,217 $39,514 $508,667 $1,464 $562,862

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{amounts in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings $132,093 $ 82,252 $ 66,695
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 37,088 28,489 28,010
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 7,244 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in inventories (10,984) (65,724) (178,590)
Net change in other assets, payables and other liabilities 14,125 69,903 153,062
Other operating activities, net (6,182) (3,695) (10,039)
Net cash provided by operating activities 173,364 111,225 59,138
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net additions to property, plant and equipment (30,883) (34,326) (29,026)
Principal reduction of mortgage-backed securities,
notes receivable and mortgage collateral 33,215 24,006 64,101
Other investing activities, net — 4,278 (232)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 2,332 (6,042) 34,843
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds of long-term debt 250,000 150,000 70,000
Reduction of long-term debt (214,426) (78,000) (152)
Decrease in short-term notes payable (20,444) (74,895) (65,600)
Common and preferred stock dividends (2,605) (2,859) (3,249)
Common stock repurchases (45,493) (25,409) (27,126)
Other financing activities, net 13,381 (1,745) (47,712)
Net cash used for financing activities (19,587) (32,908) (73,839)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 156,109 72,275 20,142
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 142,201 69,926 49,784
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $298,310 $142,201 $ 69,926
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest (net of capitalized interest) $ 25,0231 $ 23,661 $ 29,145
Cash paid for income taxes $ 72,662 $ 51,509 $ 40,683

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

1 Amount excludes call premiums and unamortized debt issuance costs shown as the loss on early extinguishment of debt.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{amounts in thousands, except per share data, unless otherwise noted)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
The Ryland Group and its wholly owned subsidiaries (“the
Company”). Intercompany transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. Certain prior year amounts have been reclas-

sified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompany-

ing notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid, short-term invest-
ments to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents totaled S$64
million and $62.2 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

PER SHARE DATA

Basic net earnings per common share is computed by dividing
net earnings, after considering preferred stock dividend
requirements, by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding. Additionally, diluted net earnings per
common share gives effect to dilutive common stock equiva-

lent shares.

INCOME TAXES

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return.
Certain items of income and expense are included in one peri-
od for financial reporting purposes and in another for income
tax purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided in recogni-
tion of these differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on enacted tax rates and are subsequently
adjusted for changes in these rates. A change in deferred tax
assets or liabilities results in a charge or credit to deferred tax

expense.

HOMEBUILDING REVENUES
Homebuilding revenues are recognized when home sales are
closed and title passes to the customer.
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SERVICE LIABILITIES
Service, warranty and completion costs are estimated and
accrued at the time a home closes.

HOUSING INVENTORIES
Housing inventories consist principally of homes under con-
struction, land under development and improved lots.

Inventories to be held and used are stated at cost, unless a
community is determined to be impaired, in which case the
impaired inventories are written down to fair value. Write-
downs of impaired inventories to fair value are recorded as

adjustments to the cost basis of the respective inventory.

Inventories to be disposed of are stated at the lower of cost or
fair value less cost to sell and are reported net of valuation
reserves. Valuation reserves related to inventories to be dis-
posed of amounted to $7.1 million at December 31, 2001, and
$10.5 million at December 31, 2000. The net carrying values of
the related inventories amounted to $6.g million and $35 mil-

lion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Costs of inventory include direct costs of land, material
acquisition, home construction and related direct overhead
expenses. Interest and taxes are capitalized during the land
development stage. The costs of acquiring and developing land
and constructing certain related amenities are allocated to the

parcels to which these costs relate.

The following table is a summary of capitalized interest:

2001 2000

Capitalized interest as of January1  $33,494 $26,970

Interest capitalized 31,675 34,105

Interest amortized to cost of sales (31,878) (27,581)
Capitalized interest as of

December 31 $33,291 $33,494

INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES

The Company participates in a number of joint ventures
in which it has less than a controlling interest. These joint
ventures, based in Atlanta, Dallas, Denver, Orlando and
Phoenix, are engaged in the development of land. At December
31, 2001 and 2000, the Company’s investment in unconsolidat-
ed joint ventures amounted to $20.1 million and $13.9 million,
respectively.
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The joint ventures finance land development investments
through a variety of borrowing arrangements. The Company
does not guarantee these financing arrangements. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the aggregate debt of the uncon-
solidated joint ventures in which the Company participated
was $22.6 million and $8.8 million, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, which include model home fur-
nishings, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization. Depreciation is provided for, principally, by
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Model home furnishings are amortized over the life of
the community as homes are closed.

PURCHASE PRICE IN EXCESS OF NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Historically, costs in excess of net assets of acquired
businesses (goodwill) are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives for up to 30 years. The
Company periodically evaluates the businesses to which good-
will relates, on an undiscounted cash flow method, in order to
assess whether the carrying value of goodwill has been
impaired. See “New Accounting Pronouncements.”

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

Mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable consist of
GNMA certificates, FNMA mortgage pass-through certificates,
FHLMC participation certificates, notes receivable secured by
mortgage-backed securities, whole loans and funds held by
trustee. Mortgage-backed securities are classified as available-
for-sale and carried in the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable
taxes, reported as a component of accumulated other compre-
hensive income in stockholders’ equity. The estimated fair
values of these securities are determined based on current
market quotations.

LOAN ORIGINATION FEES, COSTS AND MORTGAGE DISCOUNTS
Loan origination fees, net of related direct origination costs
and loan discount points, are recognized in current earnings
upon the sale of related mortgage loans.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In the normal course of business and pursuant to its risk-
management policy, the Company enters, as an end user, into
derivative instruments, including forward-delivery contracts
for loans and mortgage-backed securities, options on forward-
delivery contracts, futures contracts, and options on futures
contracts to minimize the impact of movements in market
interest rates on interest rate lock commitments (IRLCs) and
mortgage loans held-for-sale. Effective January 1, 2001, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133 (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivatives and
Hedging Activities,” as amended. During 2001, the Company
elected not to use hedge accounting treatment with respect to
its economic hedging activities. Accordingly, all derivative
instruments used as economic hedges are carried in the
consolidated balance sheets at fair value, with changes in fair
value recorded in current earnings. The Company’s mortgage
pipeline includes IRLCs, which represent commitments that
have been extended by the Company to its borrowers who have
applied for loan funding and meet certain defined credit and
underwriting criteria. The Company determined that its IRLCs
meet the definition of derivatives under SFAS 133.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consists of net income and the
increase or decrease in unrealized gains or losses on the
Company’s available-for-sale securities. Comprehensive
income totaled $133 million, $81.7 million and $65.8 million
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 19gg,
respectively.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has elected to follow the intrinsic value method
to account for compensation expense, which is related to the
award of stock options, and to furnish the pro forma disclo-
sures required under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123), “Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation.” Since stock option awards are granted at
prices no less than the fair market value of the shares at the

date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

SFAS 141 AND SFAS 142

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141
{SFAS 141), “Business Combinations,” and No. 142 (SFAS 142),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 requires that
the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. It also includes
guidance on the initial recognition and measurement of good-
will and other intangible assets arising from business combi-
nations completed after that date. SFAS 142 requires that these
assets no longer be amortized but be reviewed for impairment
at least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives will con-
tinue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.

NOTE B: EARNINGS PER SHARE RECONCILIATION

Additionally, SFAS 142 requires that goodwill included in the
carrying value of equity-method investments no longer be

amortized.

The Company will apply SFAS 141 and SFAS 142 beginning in
the first quarter of 2002. Application of the nonamortization
provisions of SFAS 142 is expected to result in an increase in
net earnings of $1.1 million (So.08 per share) in 2002. The
Company is currently in the process of determining what the
effect of the required impairment tests of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets will be on the earnings and
financial position of the Company. The Company plans to com-
plete the first of these tests in the first quarter of 2002 and
does not expect the impact to be material.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share before extraordinary item:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{amounts in thousands, except share data) 2001 2000 1899
NUMERATOR
Net earnings before extraordinary item $136,476 $82,252 $66,695
Preferred stock dividends (308) (694) (831)
Numerator for basic earnings per share — earnings before
extraordinary item available to common stockholders 136,168 81,558 65,864
Effect of dilutive securities — preferred stock dividends 308 694 831
Numerator for diluted earnings per share — earnings before
extraordinary item available to common stockholders $136,476 $82,252 $66,695
DENOMINATOR
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weighted-average shares 13,332,725 13,172,793 14,678,925
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options 643,555 315,560 292,580
Conversion of preferred shares 199,495 321,126 384,255
Equity incentive plan 79,904 83,883 149,622
Dilutive potential of common shares 922,954 720,569 826,457
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adjusted
weighted-average shares and assumed conversions 14,255,679 13,893,362 15,505,382
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Net earnings per share before extraordinary item $ 1021 $ 6.19 $ 449
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Net earnings per share before extraordinary item $ 957 $ 592 $ 4.30

The assumed conversion of preferred shares was dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
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NOTE C: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is a leading, national homebuilder and mort-
gage-related financial services firm. As one of the largest
single-family, on-site homebuilders in the United States, it
builds homes in 21 markets. The Company’s homebuilding seg-
ment specializes in the sale and construction of single-family
attached and detached housing. The Company’s financial
services segment not only provides mortgage-related products
and services such as loan origination, title, escrow and home-
owners insurance brokerage, but also maintains a portfolio of
mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources
based on a number of factors, including segment pretax earn-
ings. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (see Note A). Certain corporate expenses are allocated
to the homebuilding and financial services segments.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
REVENUES
Homebuilding $2,684,116 $2,285,540 $1,958,832
Financial services 57,668 46,105 50,434
Total $2,741,784 $2,331,645 $2,009,266
PRETAX EARNINGS
Homebuilding $ 223,190 $ 151,343 $ 120,830
Financial services 35,120 11,495 11,838
Corporate (32,730) (27,998) (23,332)
Total $ 226580 $ 134,840 $ 109,336
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION
Homebuilding $ 32011 $ 24063 $ 23398
Financial services 709 708 810
Corporate 4,348 3,718 3,802
Total $ 37,0868 $ 28,489 $ 28,010
IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS
Homebuilding $1,325,598 $1,151,232 $ 955,371
Financial services 92,847 114,490 189,724
Corporate and other 92,424 95,619 103,228
Total $1,510,869 $1,361,341 $1,248,323

NOTE D: FINANCIAL SERVICES' SHORT-TERM
NOTES PAYABLE

Financial services had outstanding borrowings at December 31

as follows:
2001 2000
Repurchase agreements $29,005 $37,664
Revolving credit agreement 33,114 44,899
Total $62,119 $82,663

In July 2001, the financial services segment terminated its
warehouse funding facility, which provided for borrowings
of up to S150 million. As a result of its ability to accelerate
loan sales, the Company no longer had a need for this facility.
There were no borrowings outstanding under this bank facili-
ty at December 31, 2000. The effective interest rates on these
borrowings were 31.6 percent, 5.8 percent and 3.4 percent
for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in the
weighted-average effective interest rate for 2001, compared to
2000, was primarily the result of commitment fees being
incurred on the facility through its termination, despite
nominal borrowings against the facility during the year.

Repurchase agreements represented short-term borrowings
of 829,005 and $37,664 in 2001 and 2000, respectively,
which were collateralized by mortgage loans, mortgage-
backed securities and investments in mortgage-backed
securities previously issued by one of the Company’s limited-
purpose subsidiaries. Outstanding collateral balances had fair
values of $28,668 and $37,843, at December 31, 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

In 2001, the Company renewed and extended a revolving
credit facility of $45 million used to finance investment port-
folio securities. The agreement extends through March 2002,
bears interest at market rates and is collateralized by invest-
ment portfolio securities. Borrowings outstanding under
this facility, totaling $33,114 and $44,899, were collateralized
by investment portfolio securities with principal balances
of $33,298 and S$47,192 at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
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Weighted-average short-term borrowings during the period
were $72 million, $126 million and $159.3 million for 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Weighted-average interest rates at the end of the period on all
short-term borrowings were 2.4 percent and 7.3 percent for
2001 and 2000, respectively. Weighted-average interest rates
during the period on all short-term borrowings were 4.8 per-
cent, 5.3 percent and 3.6 percent for 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

The repurchase agreement and revolving credit agreement
contain certain financial covenants. The Company was in com-
pliance with these covenants at December 31, 2001.

NOTE E: DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company, which uses financial instruments in the normal
course of its operations, has no derivative financial instru-

ments that are held for trading purposes.

The contract or notional amounts of these financial instru-

ments at December 31 were as follows:

2001 2000

Interest rate lock commitments $47,820 $23,578
Hedging contracts:

Forward-delivery contracts $35,000 $51,000

Others 5,000 10,000

IRLCs represent loan commitments with customers at market
rates up to 120 days before settlement. IRLCs expose the
Company to market risk as a result of increases in mortgage
interest rates. IRLCs had interest rates ranging from 5.4 per-
cent to 10.1 percent at December 31, 2001, and 6.5 percent to
13.6 percent at December 31, 2000.
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Hedging contracts are regularly entered into by the Company
for the purpose of mitigating its exposure to movements in
interest rates on IRLCs and mortgage loans held-for-sale. The
selection of hedging contracts is based upon the Company’s
secondary marketing strategy, which establishes a risk-toler-
ance level. Major factors influencing the use of various hedg-
ing contracts include general market conditions, interest
rates, types of mortgages originated and the percentage of
IRLCs expected to be funded. The market risk assumed while
holding the hedging contracts generally mitigates the market
risk associated with IRLCs and mortgage loans held-for-sale.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
nonperformance by counterparties to certain hedging con-
tracts. Credit risk is limited to those instances where the
Company is in a net unrealized gain position. The Company
manages this credit risk by entering into agreements with
counterparties meeting its credit standards and by menitoring

position limits.

NOTE F: FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments are held for purposes
other than trading. The fair values of these financial instru-
ments are based on quoted market prices, where available, or
are estimated using present value or other valuation tech-
niques. Estimated fair values are significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of
cash flows. In that regard, derived fair-value estimates cannot
be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, cannot be realized in immediate settlement of
the instruments.
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The table below sets forth the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments. It excludes nonfinancial

instruments, and, accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.

2001 2000
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
HOMEBUILDING
LIABILITIES
Senior notes $247,000 $263,223 $250,000 $253,251
Senior subordinated notes 243,500 251,296 200,000 186,688
FINANCIAL SERVICES
ASSETS
Mortgage loans held-for-sale’ $ 13,238 $ 13,524 $ 11,217 $ 11,470
Mortgage-backed securities and notes receivable 62,045 64,038 84,600 86,630
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Interest rate lock commitments 230 230 292 292
Forward-delivery contracts (290) (290) {165) (165)
Others 43 43 (17) (17)
OTHER ASSETS
Collateral for bonds payable of the
limited-purpose subsidiaries $ 17,772 $ 17,849 $ 23,005 $ 23,680
OTHER LIABILITIES
Bonds payable of the limited-purpose subsidiaries $ 15,588 $ 17174 $ 21,250 $ 22,775

1 Mortgage loans held-for-sale are reported in the balance sheet in Financial Services “Other Assets.”

The Company used the following methods and assumptions in

estimating fair values:

0 Cash and cash equivalents; secured notes payable; and
short-term notes payable. The carrying amounts reported in
the balance sheet approximate fair values.

O Senior notes; senior subordinated notes; mortgage loans
held-for-sale; mortgage-backed securities and notes receiv-
able; derivative contracts; and interest rate lock commit-
ments. The fair values of these financial instruments
are based on either quoted market prices or market prices
for similar financial instruments.

NOTE G: LIMITED-PURPOSE SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s limited-purpose subsidiaries no longer issue
mortgage-backed securities and mortgage-participation secu-
rities, but they continue to hold collateral for previously issued
mortgage-backed bonds in which the Company maintains a
residual interest. Payments made on the bonds are on a sched-
uled basis in amounts relating to corresponding payments
received on the underlying mortgage collateral. Bonds payable
are reported in the balance sheet in “Other Liabilities.”

Collateral for bonds payable consists of mortgage-backed secu-
rities, notes receivable secured by mortgage-backed securities
and mortgage loans, fixed-rate mortgage loans, and funds held
by trustee, and is reported in the balance sheet under “Other
Assets” in “Other.” Mortgage-backed securities consist of
GNMA certificates, FNMA mortgage pass-through certificates
and FHLMC participation certificates. All principal and
interest on collateral is remitted directly to a trustee and is

available for payment on the bonds.

Neither the Company nor its homebuilding and financial ser-
vices subsidiaries have guaranteed, or are otherwise obligated
with respect to, these bond issues.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the
limited-purpose subsidiaries’ bonds payable outstanding at
December 31:

2001 2000

Bonds payable, net of discounts:
2001-$637; 20005847 $15,588 $21,250
Range of interest rates 7.25%-11.65%  7.25%-11.65%
Stated maturities 2009-2018 2009-2019
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NOTE H: LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000

Senior subordinated notes $243,500 $200,000
Senior notes 247,000 250,000
Total $490,500 $450,000

The Company uses its unsecured revolving credit facility to
finance increases in its homebuilding inventory and working
capital. This facility will mature in October 2003 and provides
for borrowings up to $400 million. Borrowings under this
agreement bear interest at variable short-term rates. The effec-
tive interest rates were 7.4 percent for 2001, 8.1 percent for
2000 and 6.8 percent for 1999. There were no amounts out-
standing under this agreement at December 31, 2001 and

2000.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had $100 million of 8.25
percent senior subordinated notes due April 2008, with inter-
est payable semiannually, which may be redeemed at the
option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or
after April 1, 2003. The Company also had $143.5 million of
9.125 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2011, with
interest payable semiannually, which may be redeemed at the
option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or
after June 15, 2006. Senior subordinated notes are subordinat-
ed to all existing and future senior debt of the Company.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had S100 million of 8 per-
cent senior notes due August 2006, with interest payable semi-
annually, which may not be redeemed prior to maturity. The
Company also had $147 million of 9.75 percent senior notes
due September 2010, with interest payable semiannually,
which may be redeemed at the option of the Company, in whole

or in part, at any time on or after September 1, 2005.

In July and September 2001, the Company redeemed S100 mil-
lion of 9.625 percent senior subordinated notes due June 2004
at par and $100 million of 10.5 percent senior notes due July
2006 at the stated call price of 105.25 percent of par, respec-
tively. Additionally, the Company repurchased $3 million of
9.75 percent senior notes due September 2010 at 101.375 per-
cent of par and $6.5 million of g.125 percent senior subordi-
nated notes due June 2011 at 94.385 percent of par. As a result,
the Company recognized an extraordinary loss on early extin-
guishment of debt in 2001 of $4.4 million (net of a $2.9 million

income tax benefit).
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Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as
follows: 2002 through 2005-S0; 2006—8100,000; thereafter—
$390,500. The bank credit agreement, senior subordinated
indenture agreements and senior note agreements contain
certain financial covenants. The Company had $144.2 million
of retained earnings available for dividends at December 31,
2001, and was in compliance with these covenants.

NOTE |I: INCOME TAXES

The Company’s expense for income taxes, before extraordi-

nary item, is summarized as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
CURRENT

Federal $78,267 $46,988 $36,633
State 13,334 8,126 6,335
Total current 91,601 55,114 42,968

DEFERRED
Federal (2,134) (2,154) (279)
State (363) (372) (48)
Total deferred (2,497) (2,526) (327)
Total expense $89,104 $52,588 $42,641

The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax
rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
Income taxes at federal
statutory rate 36.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes,
net of federal tax 3.7 3.7 3.7
Other, net 0.8 0.3 0.3
Effective rate 39.5% 39.0% 39.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabil-
ities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for income tax purposes.
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets
and liabilities at December 31 were as follows:

2001 2000
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Inventory valuation
differences, operating
reserves and accruals $45,326 $38,009
Other 1,646 1,298
Total deferred tax assets 46,972 39,307
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Installment sales method
and deferred gains (6,917) (2,438)
Other (3,316) (2,011)
Total deferred tax liabilities (10,233) (4,449)
Net deferred tax asset $36,739 $34,858

The Company determined that no valuation allowance for the
deferred tax asset was required. The Company had a total cur-
rent tax liability of $20,070 and $12,321 at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

NOTE J: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

PREFERRED STOCK

On August 31, 1989, the Company sold 1,267,327 shares of
nontransferable, convertible preferred stock, par value $1.00,
to the Retirement Savings Opportunity Plan (RSOP) Trust.
There were no preferred shares outstanding at December 31,
2001. At December 31, 2000, 295,018 preferred shares were

outstanding.

During September 2001, Ryland called and redeemed all of its
outstanding preferred stock, which was held within the RSOP
Trust. At the election of each individual preferred stockholder
and in accordance with the terms of the preferred stock, each
share of preferred stock was either purchased at a per share
price of $31.5625 or converted into one share of Ryland com-
mon stock. A total of 252,787 shares of preferred stock was
converted into an equivalent number of shares of common
stock.

Each share of preferred stock received a quarterly dividend of
So.55. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company paid $308,
S694 and $831, respectively, in dividends on its preferred
stock. Each share of preferred stock entitled the holder to a
number of votes equal to the shares into which the stock was
convertible, and preferred stockholders voted together with

common stockholders on all matters.

Under the RSOP Trust, at the option of the trustee, the
Company was obligated to redeem the preferred stock
to satisfy distribution obligations to its participants. For
purposes of these redemptions, the value of each share of
preferred stock was determined monthly by an independent
appraiser, with a minimum guaranteed value of $S25.25 per
share. The Company issued common stock to satisfy this
redemption obligation, with any excess redemption price paid
in cash. At December 31, 2000, the maximum cash obligation
for such redemption was shown outside of stockholders’
equity as part of other liabilities. This obligation was
calculated assuming that all preferred shares outstanding
were submitted for redemption. Based upon the appraised
value of each share of preferred stock ($43.38) and the market
value of each share of common stock (§40.75), the redemption
obligation was $774 at December 31, 2000. No such obligation
was recorded at December 31, 2001, as a result of the redemp-
tion of the preferred stock during the year. During 2001
and 2000, 295,018 and 55,119 shares of preferred stock, respec-

tively, were retired.

COMMON SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS

In 1996, the Company adopted a revised shareholder rights
plan under which it distributed one common share purchase
right for each share of common stock outstanding on January
13, 1997. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one share
of common stock at an exercise price of $70. The rights
become exercisable ten business days after any party acquires,
or announces an offer to acquire, 20 percent or more of the
Company’s common stock. The rights expire January 13, 2007,
and are redeemable at $So0.01 per right at any time before ten
business days following the time that any party acquires 20
percent or more of the Company’s common stock.

In the event that the Company enters into a merger or other
business combination, or if a substantial amount of its assets
are sold after the time that the rights become exercisable, the
holder will receive, upon exercise, shares of the common stock
of the surviving or acquiring company having a market value
of twice the exercise price. Until the earlier of the time that the
rights become exercisable, are redeemed or expire, the
Company will issue one right with each new share of common
stock issued.
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NOTE K: EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE AND STOCK
PLANS

RETIREMENT SAVINGS OPPORTUNITY PLAN (RSOP)

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the RSOP
beginning the first pay period of the quarter, following 30 days
of employment. Pursuant to Section 4o01(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code, the plan permits deferral of a portion of a par-
ticipant’s income into a variety of investment options.
Compensation expense reflects the Company’s matching con-
tributions to its employees’ 401(k) contributions. Total com-
pensation expense related to this plan amounted to $6,485,
85,726 and $5,068 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Previously, the Company issued its preferred stock in connec-
tion with its contributions to those accounts. As a result of the
redemption of preferred stock, 202,908 shares of common
stock were allocated to participants’ accounts at December 31,

2001.

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN AND OTHER RELATED PLANS

The Company’s 1992 Equity Incentive Plan permits it to
provide equity incentives to employees in the form of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, performance shares,
restricted stock and other stock-based awards. Under this
plan, options are granted to purchase shares at prices not less
than the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant.
The options are exercisable at various dates over one- to ten-
year periods. Stock options granted during 2001 generally
have a maximum term of ten years and vest over three years.
At the beginning of each year, 2.5 percent of the number of
common shares outstanding is authorized for grants of
options and other equity instruments. No award shall be
granted pursuant to this plan after April 14, 2002, but awards
granted prior to April 15, 2002 may extend beyond that date.

Under the Company’s Nonemployee Director Equity Plan,
stock options are granted to directors to purchase shares at
prices not less than the fair market value of the shares at the
date of grant. At December 31, 2001, 193,300 stock options

were available for grant.

The following is a summary of transactions relating to all stock option plans for each year ended December 31:

2001 2000 1899
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE
Options outstanding at beginning of year 2,199,936 $20.53 2,238,630 $20.02 1,840,400 $18.17
Granted 382,750 49.34 546,500 19.96 690,250 24.51
Exercised (648,133) 20.13 (468,551) 17.32 (183,725) 17.08
Forfeited (97,911) 27.45 (116,643) 21.13 (108,295) 22.13
Options outstanding at end of year 1,836,642 $26.30 2,199,936 $20.53 2,238,630 $20.02
Available for future grant 267,411 286,027 71,794
Total shares reserved 2,104,053 2,485,963 2,310,424
Options exercisable at December 31 1,024,183 $20.89 1,121,064 $18.90 1,130,805 $17.18

Prices related to options

exercised during the year $13.50-$28.94 $13.50-528.88 $11.50-$24.13

A summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2001, follows:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXCERCISABLE

WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

RANGE OF AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

EXERCISE NUMBER REMAINING EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE
PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE (YEARS) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE

$12.75 to $16.44 621,835 6.35 $14.89 385,151 $13.98

$17.13 to $25.19 579,217 6.23 $23.02 428,432 $22.78

$25.50 to $73.20 635,590 8.59 $40.46 210,600 $29.67

a



THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{amounts in thousands, except per share data, unless otherwise noted)

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of
SFAS 123. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been rec-
ognized for stock option plans. Had compensation expense for
these plans been determined based on fair value at the grant
date for awards, consistent with the provisions of SFAS 123, in
2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company’s net earnings and net
earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma
amounts indicated in the following table:

2001 2000 1998
Net earnings ~ as reported  $132,093 $82,262  $66,695
Net earnings ~ pro forma  $129,494 $80,137  $64,471
Basic net earnings per
share — as reported $ 9.88 $ 619 $ 4.49
Basic net earnings per
share — pro forma $ 9.69 $ 6.03 $ 434
Diluted net earnings per
share — as reported $ 9.26 $ 592 $ 430
Diluted net earnings per
share — pro forma $ 9.08 $ 577 $ 4.20

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the grant
date by using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fol-
lowing weighted-average assumptions were used for grants in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: a risk-free interest rate of
4.7 percent, 6.4 percent and 5.2 percent; an expected volatility
factor for the market price of the Company’s common stock of
38 percent, 35 percent and 34 percent; a dividend yield of 0.3
percent, 0.9 percent and 0.7 percent; and an expected life of
three years, three years and four years. The weighted-average
fair values at the grant date for options granted in 2001, 2000
and 1999 were $20.28, $5.97 and $7.95, respectively.

Additionally, at December 31, 2001, there were 125,000 shares
of restricted stock outstanding. These shares vest as follows:
2002—51,450; 2003~51,450; and 2004-22,100. Compensation
expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period.

NOTE L: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Company acquires rights
under option agreements to purchase land for use in future
homebuilding operations. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had deposits and letters of credit outstanding of $36,381 for
land options and land purchase contracts having a total
purchase price of $619,200.

Rent expense primarily relates to office facilities, model
homes, and furniture and equipment. The increase in rent
expense for 2001 from 2000 was primarily due to an increase

‘in model home lease activity.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999

Total rent expense $21,591 $18,212 $13,581
Less income from

subleases {2,376) (2,416) (2,149)

Net rental expense $19,215 $15,796 $11,432

Future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable

leases with remaining terms in excess of one year are as

follows:

2002 $10,026
2003 7,329
2004 5,601
2005 2,663
2006 1,671
After 2006 39
Subtotal ) $27,329
Less sublease income (1,700)
Total lease commitments $25,629

CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities may arise from obligations incurred in
the ordinary course of business or from the usual obligations
of on-site housing producers for the completion of contracts.
Some municipalities require the Company to issue develop-
ment bonds or maintain letters of credit to assure completion
of public facilities within a project. At December 31, 2001, total
development bonds were $265,779 and total deposits and let-
ters of credit were $70,545.

Ryland Mortgage Company (RMC) received information from
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) regarding
outstanding claims related to mortgage servicing contracts
entered into with the Resolution Trust Company during 1991
and 1992. RMC, together with the FDIC, is in the process of
resolving these claims. The Company is party to various legal
proceedings generally incidental to its businesses. Based on
evaluation of these matters and discussions with counsel,
management believes that liabilities arising from these mat-
ters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the Company.

.




INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

THE RYLAND GROUP,

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
THE RYLAND GROUP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial posi-
tion of The Ryland Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Los Angeles, California

January 23, 2002




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of the Company is responsible for the integrity and accuracy of the financial statements and all other annual report
information. The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and include
amounts based on management’s judgments and estimates.

The accounting systems, which record, summarize and report financial information, are supported by internal control systems
designed to provide reasonable assurance, at an appropriate cost, that the assets are safeguarded and that transactions
are recorded in accordance with Company policies and procedures. Proper selection, training and development of personnel also
contribute to the effectiveness of the internal control systems. These systems are the responsibility of management and are
regularly tested by the Company’s internal auditors. External auditors also review and test the effectiveness of these systems to
the extent they deem necessary to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors periodically meets with management, the internal auditors and the external
auditors to review accounting, auditing and financial matters. Both internal auditors and external auditors have unrestricted

access to the Audit Committee.

GORDON A. MILNE
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

9—/?&1 J

DAVID L. FRISTOE
Senior Vice President, CIQ, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA AND COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

{amounts in thousands, 2001 2000
except share data) unaudited DEC. 31 SEPT. 30 JUN. 30 MAR. 31 DEC. 31 SEPT. 30 JUN. 30 MAR. 31

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenues $828,471 $711,641 $687,513 $514,159 $749,556 $628,327 $524,750 $429,012
Earnings before taxes

and extraordinary item 74,037 68,963 55,986 26,594 51,712 37,441 27,773 17,914
Income tax expense 29,244 27,241 22,114 10,505 20,168 14,602 10,832 6,986
Net earnings before

extraordinary item $ 44793 $ 41,722 $ 33,872 $ 16,089 $ 31,544 $ 22839 $ 16941 $ 10,928

Extraordinary item — loss
on early extinguishment

of debt? 144 (4,527) - — - — — —
Net earnings $ 44937 $ 37,195 $ 33,872 $ 16,089 $ 31,544 $ 22,839 $ 16941 $ 10,928
Basic net earnings per

common share $ 341 $ 277 % 252 % 119 $ 237 $ 174 $ 129 $ 0.80
Diluted net earnings per

common share $ 322 $ 259 % 236 $ 112 $ 222 $ 167 $ 124 $ 078

Weighted-average common
shares outstanding:
Basic 13,190 13,416 13,388 13,340 13,222 12,992 13,027 13,449
Diluted 13,964 14,365 14,358 14,364 14,219 13,692 13,652 14,010

1 Net of taxes of (§95) and $2,956 in the quarters ended December 31, 2001, and September 30, 2001, respectively.

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

The Ryland Group lists its common shares on the New York Stock Exchange, trading under the symbol RYL.

The table below presents high and low market prices and dividend information for the Company. The number of common
stockholders of record, at February 7, 2002, was 2,814.

{See Note H for dividend restrictions.)

DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS

DECLARED DECLARED
2001 HIGH LOW PER SHARE 2000 HIGH LOW PER SHARE
First quarter $50.82 $35.80 $0.04 First quarter $22.25 $15.25 $0.04
Second quarter 56.30 37.91 0.04 Second quarter 22.88 18.44 0.04
Third quarter 62.49 40.84 0.04 Third quarter 31.00 20.00 0.04
Fourth quarter 74.40 45.20 0.04 Fourth quarter 41.56 27.50 0.04




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

R. CHAD DREIER, 54

Chairman, president and chief executive officer of The Ryland
Group, Inc. Board member since 1993. Chairman of the Board
of Trustees of Loyola Marymount University. Member of the
Policy Advisory Board for Harvard University’s Joint Center
for Housing Studies, and the California Business Round Table.

LESLIE M. FRECON, 48

Board member since 1998. President, L Frécon Enterprises.
Senior vice president, corporate finance, General Mills
Corporation until 1998. Director of Associated Packaging
Enterprises, Inc.; APIL, Inc. and SimonDelivers.com, Inc.
Trustee of Breck School. Member of the Women’s Economic
Roundtable and Advisory Council of the Center for Women’s
Business Research. oa

ROLAND A. HERNANDEZ, 44

Board member since 2001. Former chairman and CEO of
Telemundo Group, Inc. Member of the board of Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. Director of the University of Southern California's
Annenberg School of Communications, Harvard University's
Rockefeller Center for Latin American Studies, Harvard Law
School's Board of Advisors, and Yale University's President's
Council on International Activities. oa

WILLIAM L. JEWS, 50

Board member since 1994. President and chief executive
officer of CareFirst BlueCross BlueShield and chief executive
officer of Blue Cross Blue Shield of Delaware and Washington,
D.C. Director of MuniMae Inc., Choice Hotels, MBNA, and
EcoLab Inc. Governor of the Federal Reserve Bank. o ¢

WILLIAM G. KAGLER, 69

Board member since 1985. Retired chairman and chief
executive officer of Skyline Chili, Inc., and former president of
The Kroger Company. Director of Fifth Third Bankcorp and
Union Central Life Insurance Co. oo

NED MANSOUR, 53
Board member since 2000. Former president, Mattel Inc.
Member of the board of trustees of The Hospice Foundation

and of the Toy Industry Foundation. Member of the board of
the Children Affected by AIDS Foundation. Author of the book
Divided Roads. oo

ROBERT E. MELLOR, 58

Board member since 1999. President, chief executive officer
and director of Building Materials Holding Corporation.
Formerly of counsel to the law firm of Gibson, Dunn &
Crutcher, LLP. Director of California Chamber of Commerce
and Coeur d’Alene Mines Corporation. o a

NORMAN J. METCALFE, 59

Board member since 2000. Private investor. Former vice chair-
man and chief financial officer of The Irvine Company.
Director of The Tejon Ranch Company. Member of the
University of Washington Foundation board of directors, and
School of Business advisory board. ao

CHARLOTTE ST. MARTIN, 586

Board member since 1996. Executive vice president of Loews
Hotels. Director of Gibson Greetings, Inc. 1993-2000.
Secretary and treasurer of the New York Convention
and Visitors Bureau. Immediate past chairman of
the Professional Convention Management Association
Foundation. Immediate past chair of the New York Society

of Association Executives. o ¢

PAUL J. VARELLO, 58

Board member since 1999. Retired chairman and chief
executive officer of American Ref-Fuel Company. Former
sector president of Fluor Daniel. Former director of Integrated
Waste Services Association. Member of the American
Society of Civil Engineers, and the American Institute of
Chemical Engineers. oo

JOHN O. WILSON, 63

Board member since 1987. Executive vice president and chief
economist of Bank of America Corporation until 1998.
Director of Calpine Corporation and California Council on
Science and Technology. oa

COMMITTEES

o Audit Committee
o Compensation Committee
a Finance Committee

© Nominating and Governance Committee
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THE RYLAND GROQUP, INC.

& SUBSIDIARIES

CORPORATE AND SUBSIDIARY OFFICERS

THE RYLAND GROUP

R. CHAD DREIER
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

ROBERT J. CUNNION III
Senior Vice President
Human Resources

ERIC E. ELDER
Senior Vice President
Marketing and I-Strategies

TIMOTHY J. GECKLE
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

CHARLES W. JENKINS
Vice President
Sales Training

ANNE C. MADISON
Vice President
Special Affairs

MAURICE M. SIMPKINS
Vice President
Public Affairs

48

GORDON A, MILNE
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

DAVID L. FRISTOE

Senior Vice President,
CIO, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer

CATHEY S. LOWE
Vice President and Treasurer

STEVEN M. DWYER
Vice President
Purchasing

RENE L. MENTCH
Vice President
Tax

THOMAS M. PEARSON
Vice President
Internal Audit

RYLAND MORTGAGE COMPANY

DANIEL G. SCHREINER
President

SUSAN M. CASS
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

SANDRA J. MCDOWELL
Senior Vice President
Operations

DAVID A. BROWN
Senior Vice President
Secondary Marketing

CAROL GRAHAM
President
Ryland Insurance Services

DEBORAH L. PRINCIPATO
President
Ryland Title and Escrow Companies

LORI A. PASTEUR
Vice President
Human Resources




THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

CORPORATE AND SUBSIDIARY OFFICERS

RYLAND HOME RYLAND HOMES RYLAND HOMES
NORTH REGION SOUTH REGIQON WEST REGION
KIPLING W. SCOTT JOHN M. GARRITY MARK L. BEISSWANGER
President President President

North Region South Region West Region

RUSSELL T. DONALDSON ROBERT L. CLARK MELISSA H. BAILEY
Vice President Vice President Vice President
Financial Operations Financial Operations Marketing

CARYN B. SIMONS DIANE L. MORRISON PHILIP M. DECOCCO
Vice President Vice President Vice President

Human Resources Marketing Human Resources
ROBERT E. WALSH RICHARD A. PARRINO GERALD R. WILSON
Vice President Vice President Vice President
Operations Human Resources Operations

CONNIE A. WERNER JOSEPH E. SABELLA MARK L. BEISSWANGER
Vice President Vice President President

Marketing Operations Phoenix Division
JOHN K. ADAMS CHARLES J. FUHR WILLIAM M. BUTLER
President President President

Ohio Valley Division Atlanta Division Denver Division
SCOTT C. GALLIVAN JON S. HARDY MICHAEL S. MCKISSICK
President President President
Washington Division Carolinas Division Northern California Division
EDWARD W. GOLD JOHN D. HUTCHINSON JON B. WERNER
President President President

Baltimore Division Dallas Division Southern California Division
ALAN J. GOLDSTICKER JAMES E. LEMMING

President President

Indianapolis Division Houston Division

PETER G. SKELLY LARRY T. NICHOLSON

President President

Chicago Division Orlando Division

WAYNE J. SOOJIAN ROBERT I. SOLOMON

President President

Twin Cities Division Central Texas Division

WILLIAM G. WRIGHT
President
West Florida Division
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THE RYLAND GROUP, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

CORPORATE AND INVESTOR

HEADQUARTERS

The Ryland Group, Inc.

24025 Park Sorrento, Suite 400
Calabasas, California 91302
(818) 223-7500

www.ryland.com

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Ryland is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol RYL. Price information for Ryland’s common stock
appears daily in major newspapers, as well as on Ryland’s
web site at www.ryland.com, which also includes historical
financial information, news and other financial reports.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

EquiServe Trust Company N.A.
Shareholder Services

P.0. Box 2500

Jersey City, New Jersey 07303-2500
(201) 324-1644

www.equiserve.com

INVESTOR [NQUIRLIES

Shareholders, securities analysts and others seeking
information about the Company’s business operations and
financial performance are invited to contact the treasurer’s
office at (818) 223-7677 or by writing to:

Cathey S. Lowe

Vice President and Treasurer
The Ryland Group, Inc.

24025 Park Sorrento, Suite 400
Calabasas, California 91302
clowe@ryland.com

INFORMATION

FORM 10-K REPORT AND OTHER PUBLICATIONS

Shareholders may receive a copy of the 2001 Form 10-K and
other publications filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in Washington, D.C., without charge by writing to:

The Ryland Group

Investor Relations

24025 Park Sorrento, Suite 400
Calabasas, California 91302
investors@ryland.com

Copies of the annual and quarterly reports are also available.

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Dividends on Ryland common stock are paid quarterly as
declared by the board of directors. The payment dates are in
January, April, July and October.

NEWS RELEASES AND EVENTS

News releases and quarterly earnings announcements,
including live audio and replays of the most recent quarterly
earnings conference calls, can be found on the Ryland web site
in the Investor Relations section under "News Releases.”

In addition, dates for upcoming events, including earnings
release dates, conference calls, and Ryland's participation in
analyst and industry conferences, are posted under "Calendar
of Events."

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at g9:00 a.m.
Pacific Time on April 24, 2002, at Ryland's corporate
headquarters: 24025 Park Sorrento, Suite 400, Calabasas,

California 91302.
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